Historic Zoning Commission
6:00 P.M. Thursday, September 11, 2025
Board Room in Jonesborough’s Town Hall

Agenda

Roll call noting the presence of a quorum, additions to the agenda, or any conflicts of interest
with items on the agenda.

Members Present:
Members Absent:

Call to Order
Chairman Frank Collins

Item I: Public Comments

PUBLIC COMMENTS REGARDING AGENDA ITEMS

Members of the public wishing to speak concerning any item on the agenda during the Public
Comment period must sign up by calling the Town Administrative Office at 423- 753-1030 with
their name, address, and subject about which they wish to speak no later than 2 hours before the
meeting if the meeting occurs during normal business hours or by 4:45 p.m. the day of the
meeting if the meeting occurs after hours. Otherwise, such member of the public must sign in at
the location of the meeting, prior to the beginning of the meeting, by seeing the secretary or staff
of the commission. Each individual shall be given three (3) minutes fo address the Commission
regarding Agenda items. Comments shall be limited to items on the agenda.

Item II. New Business:

105 N First Ave — Owner/Presenter — Laurie McDaniel

Request to replace white metal awning with new white metal awning over the
door/window and add matching white metal awning to other door/window. White color
will match house trim color. Both are on driveway side of house.

122 E Main St — Owner/Presenter — Brian Ponder

Request to add a fire escape walkway from the bedroom windows on the back of the
building leading to the new staircase. Fire escape would be difficult to see from the
ground or adjoining properties. Color would be the same as the stairway.



250 E Main St — Owner/Presenter — Wes McKinney

Request to replace existing silver flat pane! standing seam metal roof with a black flat
panel standing seam metal roof. Existing roof is very old.

Request to add black aluminum metal fence to the East side and rear of property. Exact
placement to be discussed. Building Inspector/Street Department stated that placing a
fence between the front porch and East Main St would impact traffic sight lines from
Franklin St, and would be in the right of way for a main thoroughfare.

Iiem III: Old Business

117 Spring Street — Owner: Allyson Wilkerson

April 2024 approved addition of porch and railings to rear and side of house. House
is deteriorating and needs attention.

215 W Woodrow Ave - Owner: John & Charlene Buchanan

February 2023 — 1950s addition on rear of property was approved for removal. The
addition has deteriorated to the point where it is an eyesore and nuisance {o
surrounding properties. Also approved — Porch to be rebuilt and to extend around the
west side where chimney is located. Siding to match the original. Roof will be
repaired with like material. Half-round gutters to be added with downspouts. Little
progress has been made on the porch.

102 W Woodrow Ave (2 buildings) — Owner: Parson’s Brew LLC

Parson’s Table — Windows have been boarded up for over a year. Paint is
deteriorating. Door is sometimes cracked open.
Widow Brown’s — Porch collapsing, gutters failing. Paint is deteriorating.

239 E Main St — Owner: Mikki Henley

Condition of porch has not been stabilized since conversations in February 2025. The
porch is endanger of further deterioration. Foundation concerns were discussed with
the HZC in February 2025 and have not been addressed.



Item 1V: Expedited

105 Courthouse Square — Smoky Grass Station - Manager: Sydney Greer
Reguest for sign emblem for front door window that matches the hanging sign. Door

window has frosted glass to address sunlight. Expedited approval granted by Frank
Collins & Nita Van Til.

Item V: Property Designation Committee

The Property Designation Committee consists of HZC members Nita Van Til, Rebecca Moss,
Herman Jenkins, Marcy Hawley and community members Ruth Verhegge and Geoff Haire.

204 W Main Street outbuilding needs evaluation about Contributing status.

Item VI: Demolition by Neglect Update

There are four or more properties that came before the HZC more than a year ago and have made
little or no progress with addressing significant issues with their properties. HZC to decide
whether to move forward with the Demolition by Neglect process.

Item VII: Future Items

The following information is provided to help keep track of future items. Discussion of specific
properties will not take place since the owner will not be present.

a) 100 Oak Grove Ave. — Jackson Park Church may want to expand parking lot.

b) 201 Oak Grove Ave. — May request awning for side window.

E) 100 N Cherokee St. — May paint building at a later date and will make request with
paint chip sample and details.

Item VIII: JAMSA

The monthly Jonesborough Area Merchants and Service Association (JAMSA) meetings take
place on the third Thursday each month at 8:30am. The meetings are usually about town events
and business happenings. It would be helpful to have a member of the HZC attend as a resource
for JAMSA. Attending would also solidify the HZC’s commitment to helping the business
community and town.



HZC Database with Maps

Frank Collins met with Glenn Rosenoff to discuss a few discrepancies on the H-1, H-2 overlay
zone map that the county digitized in 2023. The 2023 map did match maps that the town and
county published in 2004, 2009, and 2014. In 2023, nine properties were omitted, eight did not
follow property lines (included the house but not the back yard), three H-1 properties were split
between the H-1 and H-2 overlay zones, and one extra property was included as H-1. Once the
issues have been resolved, we will work with the town to publish the HZC ARCGIS database.

Item IX: Commissioner Comments

Report about the July 15 Certified Local Government training session.

Item X: Approval of Minutes

Approval of August 28 minutes.



HISTORIC ZONING COMMISSION

Jonesbhorough Town Hall — Board Room
123 Boone Street, Jonesborough, TN
August 28, 2025 - 6:00 PM
Minutes

Members Present: Frank Collins, Nita VanTil, Matt Kehn, Marcy Hawley, Herman Jenkins,
Colton Brasure
Members Absent: Rebecca Moss, Chad Hyiton, Michael Kieta

Call to Order
Chair, Frank Collins, called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM.

Addition to Agenda

Chair, Frank Coliins, asked for a motion to add 103 Fox Street to the agenda.

Motion: Nita VanTil made a motion, seconded by Herman Jenkins, to add 103 Fox St.
under new business. Motion passed unanimously.

Iltem I: Public Comments
No comments made.

Item 1I: New Business

103 Fox St — Owners: Anna Floyd Presenter: Frank Collins
Owners requested approval to add a metal grate for kitchen equipment venting on the
existing brown plywood door. The owners plan to replace the plywood door in the future.

Motion: Nita VanTil made a motion, seconded by Matt Kehn, to approve installing a
metal grate into the plywood door for kitchen ventilation as presented. Motion passed
unanimously.

ltem llI: Old Business
No old business discussed.

lHem IV: Expedited Approval

121 W Main — OQwners: Christ Church, Bobby Roberts
Requested expedited approval for metal frame sandwich board, 36” tall by 24” wide. The
design image is gold on a white background. The image has a cross with the words “Christ
Church, Jonesborough, Worship

ltem V: Advertising Standards and Guidelines Discussion
Chairman, Frank Collins, communicated with town officials, and they are receptive to hearing
proposais by the HZC about amending the municipal code to allow string lights during defined
holiday periods during the year. Currently the municipal code does not allow string lights that
are affixed to a building as advertisement.
Jonesborough Municipal Code (1991), Chapter 12, Business and Advertising Signs:
11-1207. Prohibited signs. The following signs are prohibifed from being erected or
maintained in any zoning district and in any area of the Town of Jonesborough:
(1) Any lighting arrangement by exposed tubing or strings of lights, outlining any
portion of a building or structure or affixed to any ornamental feature thereof,

HZC Minutes | August 28, 2025
Page 1 of 4



(7) Any animated sign that by movement or by other method or manner of illumination,
flashes on or off, winks, strobes, blinks with varying light or color intensity.

The HZC can recommend changes to the municipal code but cannot change the municipal
code. To help businesses and to add clarity to the HZC Advertising Standards and Guidelines
regarding lighting, the HZC would like to add Section 8 to the Advertising Standards and
Guidelines. After gathering feedback and input from the community and business owners,
including those who participated in the August 14, 2025, open session meeting Section 8 will
read:

8. Projected Images, String Lights. and Flashing Lights

1. Projected images or signs on a building are not permitted.

2. String lights on the exterior of businesses or directly behind business display windows
are not permitted. The Historic Zoning Commission allows an exception for the display
of String Lights during the following holiday periods — the Friday before Thanksgiving
to January 31 and from June 28 to July 11. During these periods, string lights can be
displayed behind storefront windows as long as they are not excessively bright (light
floods onto sidewalk, or light makes it difficult to see store items inside the window).

3. Flashing lights on the exterior of businesses or behind business display windows are
not permitted. See Municipal Code 11-1207.

Motion: Herman Jenkins made a motion, seconded by Matt Kehn, to approve Section 8
as presented. Motion passed unanimously.

There was discussion on changing the requirements on lighting signs to include halo lit signs
if the light is a soft glow and compatible with the era of the building however after further
discussion the HZC agreed to table the topic.

in August 2024 and again in June 2025, the HZC adopted new wording in the Advertising
Standards and Guidelines regarding Portable Signs. Currently all sandwich boards in
Jonesborough are no larger than 42" tall and 24" wide with the exception of one which was
not approved and does not meet other criteria (white dry ink backing). With 14 sandwich
boards visible on one side of Main Street from the Chester Inn to Noelle, it would be prudent
to assure any future sandwich boards approved are no larger than the ones that are currently
displayed. The location of sandwich boards is determined by the Outdoor Use Permit process
therefore, the HZC does not need to address sandwich board locations. To address and
clarify sandwich board/portable signs the following changes were presented for approval.

6. Portable Signs and Exterior Furnishings
6A — Construction
1. Portable signs shall be no more than 42 inches tall and 24 inches wide.

7. Exterior furnishings and portable signs made of plastic are prohibited.
6B - Display

3. Portable signs shall be displayed only during the hours of business operation when
staff are present at the location.

HZC Minutes | August 28, 2025
Page 2 of 4



6C - Location

4. A business, organization or other such entity is required to obtain an Qutdoor Use
Permit to utilize a portion of town sidewalks or rights-of-way on an on-going basics to
carry out a business or other such other activity along streets within the historic district
that requires the reguiar use of town property. Permits must be approved by the Board
of Mayor and Aldermen. The exact placement of a portable sign is determined by town
staff through the Outdoor Use Permit process to assure safety, walkway access, ADA
compliance and insurance coverage.

Motion: Nita VanTil made a motion, seconded by Cofton Brasure, to approve changes
to 6A, 6B, and 6C as presented. Motion passed unanimously.

Members of the community have expressed concern about leaving items for sale or other
items outside of a business when the business is not open. To address these concerns the
following was presented for consideration and approval:

9. Qutdoor Display of Items for Sale
1. ltems displayed outside of a business shall follow the same guidelines and
requirements as provided in Section 6. Portable Signs and Exterior Furnishings.

2. ltems for Sale shall be displayed outside only during the hours of business
operation and shall not be displayed outside when the business is closed.

Motion: Marcy Hawley made a motion, seconded by Herman Jenkins, to approve
section 9 as presented. Motion passed unanimously.

item VI: Property Designation Committee

Nita VanTil reported that a meeting wili be scheduled. She created updated versions of the
forms that are used to determine if a property is contributing or non-contributing and/or
reviewing properties that have not been previously reviewed. The last time properties were
reviewed was in 2002 and 2003.

item VII: Demolition by Neglect Update

There are four or more properties that came before the HZC more than a year ago that have
made little or no progress with addressing significant issues with their properties. Chairman,
Frank Collins, will send letters to the owners of 102 Woodrow Ave, 117 Spring St, 239 £ Main
St, and 215 Woodrow Ave inviting them to attend the September 11 HZC meeting and
provide an update on their property. The update provided will allow the HZC to determine if
the property will be included in the demolition by neglect process.

item VHI: Future ltems — No update/discussion.

ltem 1X: HZC Database with Maps

Frank Collins met with Glenn Rosenoff to discuss a few discrepancies on the H-1, H-2
overlay zone map that the county digitized in 2023. The 2023 map did match maps that the
town and county published in 2004, 2009, and 2014. In 2023, nine properties were omitted,
eight did not follow property lines (included the house but not the back yard), three H-1
properties were split between the H-1 and H-2 overlay zones, and one extra property was
included as H-1. Once the issues have been resolved, we will work with the town to publish

HZC Minutes | August 28, 2025
Page 3 of 4



the HZC ARCGIS database. Once issues have been resolved the Board of Mayor and
Aldermen will recertify the maps to correct the boundaries.

item X: Commissioner Comments
The stairs constructed at Brian Ponder’s event venue look very nice.

Item XI: Approval of Minutes — August 14, 2025 Minutes
Motion: Herman Jenkins made a motion, seconded by Marcy Hawley, to approve
August 14, 2025 minutes as presented. Motion passed unanimously.

Chair, Frank Collins, adjourned the meeting.

HZC Minutes | August 28, 2025
Page 4 of 4



